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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS " Inv. No. 337-TA-506 |
AND CHIPSETS AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING
SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC OPTICAL
STORAGE DEVICES

AN N NI N )

NOTICE OF COMMISSION DETERMINATION TO RESCIND REMEDIAL ORDERS
AGENCY: U.S. intemational Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has
determined to rescind the remedial orders issued in the above-captioned investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Clara Kuehn, Esq., Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone (202) 205-3012. Copies of the Commission orders, the Commission opinion in
support thereof, and all other nonconfidential documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to
5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street,
S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. '

General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its
Internet server (http://www.usitc.gov). The public record for this investigation may be viewed on
the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS-ON-LINE) at http://edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired
persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on 202-205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

The Commission instituted this investigation on April 14, 2004, based on a complaint filed
on behalf of Zoran Corporation (“Zoran”) and Oak Technology, Inc. (“Oak”) both of Sunnyvale,
California (collectively “‘complainants™). 69 Fed. Reg. 19876. The complaint, as supplemented,
alleged violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, in the
importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States
after importation of certain optical disk controller chips and chipsets and products containing
same, including DVD players and PC optical storage devices, by reason of infringement of



claims 1-12 of us. Patent No. 6,466,736 (“the ‘736 patent™), claims 1-3 of U.S. 'Patent No.
6,584,527 (“the ‘527 patent”), and claims 1-35-of U.S. Patent No. 6,546,440 (“the ‘440 patent”).
Id.

The notice of investigation identified 12 respondents. 69 Fed. Reg. 19876. On June 7,
-2004, the presiding administrative law judge (“ALJ”) issued an initial determination (“ID”")
(Order No. 5) terminating the investigation as to two respondents on the basis of a consent order
and settlement agreement. On June 22, 2004, the ALJ issued an ID (Order No. 7) granting
complainants’ motion to amend the complaint and notice of investigation to add nine additional
respondents. Those IDs were not reviewed by the Commission.

On December 22, 2004, the ALI issued an ID (Order No. 33) granting complainants’
motion to terminate the investigation in part with respect to claims 2—6 and 8-11 of the ‘736
patent and claims 24, 6,9, 11, 12, 15-18, 20, and 22-35 of the ‘440 patent. On January 28,
2005, the ALJ issued an ID (Order No. 37) granting complainants’ motion to terminate the
~ investigation in part with respect to claim 12 of the ‘736 patent. Neither ID was reviewed by the
Commission. Thus, at the time that Order No. 37 issued, the claims remaining for determination
on the merits were claims 1.and 7 of the ‘736 patent; claims 1, 5 7, 8,10, 13, 14, 19, and 21 of
the. ‘440 patent; and claims 1-3 of the ‘527 patent.

An eight-day evidentiary hearing was held on February 7-12, and 14-15, 2005.

On May 16, 2005, the ALJ issued his final ID, findings of fact and conclusions of law,
and recommended determination on remedy and bonding. The ALJ concluded that there was'a
violation of section 337 based on his findings that: (a) the accused products infringe claim 3 of
the ‘527 patent, (b) the ‘527 patent is not unenforceable, (c) claim 3 of the ‘527 patent is not
invalid, and (d) complainants have satisfied the domestic industry requirement with respect to the
‘527 patent. Although the ALJ found that the other asserted claims of the ‘527 patent (claims 1
and 2) are not invalid, he found that the accused products do not infringe those claims. The ALJ
found no violation with respect to the other patents in issue. He found that the accused products
do not infringe any asserted claim of the ‘440 or ‘736 patents and that complainants have not
satisfied the domestic industry requirement with respect to those patents. He also found that the
asserted claims of the ‘440 and ‘736 patents are not invalid and that those patents are not
unenforceable.

On May 27, 2005, complainants and nineteen respondents each petitioned for review of
portions of the final ID. On July 19, 2005, the Commission determined to review the ID in part.
70 Fed. Reg. 42589-91. Specifically, the Commission determined to review the ID’s findings of
fact and conclusions of law with respect to the ‘527 and ‘440 patents. Id. The Commission
determined not to review the ID’s findings of fact and conclusions of law with respect to the ‘736
patent, thereby adopting them. Id.. Accordmgly, the Commission found no violation of section
337 with respect to the “736 patent. Id. The Commission also determined to review and modify
the ID to clarify that respondents accused of infringing only the asserted claims of the ‘736 patent
(viz., respondents Audiovox Corporation; Initial Technology, Inc.; Mintek Digital, Inc.; Shinco
International AV Co., Ltd.; Changzhou Shinco Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Jiangsu Shinco
Electronic Group Co., Ltd.; Terapin Technology Pte., Ltd. [formerly known as Teraoptix d/b/a
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Terapin Technology] of Singapore; and Terapin Technology U.S. [formerly also known as
Teraoptix]) are not in violation of section 337. Id.

On review, the Commission determined that there was a violation of section 337 asto
claim 3 of the ‘527 patent, but no violation of the statute as to the remaining claims in issue of
the ‘527 patent (viz., claims 1 and 2) and no violation as to the claims in issue of the ‘440 patent
(viz., claims 1, 5,7, 8, 10, 13, 14, 19, and 21). 70 Fed. Reg. 57620. On September 28, 2005, the .
Commission determined that the appropriate form of relief is a limited exclusion order
prohibiting the unlicensed entry of chips or chipsets covered by claim 3 of the ‘527 patent
manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf of MediaTek, Inc. of Hsin-Chu City, Taiwan,
and optical storage devices containing such covered chips or chipsets that are manufactured
abroad or imported by or on behalf of Artronix Technology, Inc. of Brea, California; ASUSTek
Computer, Inc. of Taipei, Taiwan; ASUS Computer International of Fremont, California; MSI
Computer Corporation of City of Industry, California; TEAC America Inc. of Montebello,
California; EPO Science and Technology, Inc. of Taipei, Taiwan; LITE-ON Information
Technology Corp. of Taipei, Taiwan; Micro-Star International Co., Ltd. of Taipei Hsien, Taiwan;
TEAC Corp. of Tokyo, Japan; or Ultima Electronics Corp. of Taipei Hsien, Taiwan (collectively,
with MediaTek, Inc. “respondents™). Id. The Commission also determined to issue cease and
desist orders directed to Artronix Technology, Inc.; ASUSTek Computer, Inc.; ASUS Computer
International; MSI Computer Corporation; TEAC America Inc.; EPO Science and Technology,
Inc.; and LITE-ON Information Technology Corp. Id.

On February 10, 2006, complainants Zoran and Oak and respondent MediaTek filed,
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(k) and Commission rule 210.76(a) (19 C.F.R. § 210.76(a)), a joint
petition for rescission of the limited exclusion order and the cease and desist orders issued in the
investigation based on a settlement agreement that resolves the underlying dispute between all of
the parties, including all of the other respondents. On February 22, 2006, the Commission
investigative attorney filed a response supporting the joint petition.

Having reviewed the parties’ submissions, the Commission has determined that the
settlement agreement satisfies the requirement of Commission rule 210.76(a)(1), 19 C.F.R.
§ 210.76(a)(1), for changed conditions of fact or law. The Commission therefore has issued an
order rescinding the remedial orders previously issued in this investigation.

This action is taken under the authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 ‘
U.S.C. § 1337) and section 210.76(a)(1) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure
(19 C.F.R. § 210.76(a)(1)).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: March 17, 2006






UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS " Inv. No. 337-TA-506 |
AND CHIPSETS AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING
SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC OPTICAL
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ORDER

The Commission instituted this investigation on April 14, 2004, based on a cdmplaint
filed on behalf of Zoran Corporation (‘;Zoran”) and Oak Technology, Inc. (“Oak”) both of
Sunnyvale, Ca]ifomia (collectively “complainants™). 69 Fed. Reg. 19876. The compiaint, as
suﬁplementeq, alleged violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 in the importation into
the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation
of certain optical disk controller chibs and chipsets and products containing same, including
DVD players and PC optical storage devices, by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S.
Patent Nos. 6,466,736 (“the ‘736 pétent”); 6,584,527 (“the ‘_527 patent”); and 6,546,440 (“the
‘440 patent™). Id. | |

On May 16, 2005, the presiding admini‘strative law judge (“ALJ”) issued his final inifial
determination (“ID”) finding a violation of section 337 with respect to the ‘527 patent, but no
violation with respect to the “736 and ‘440 patents. |

On July 19, 2005, the Commivssioﬁ determined to review the ID’s findings of fact»and

conclusions of law with respecf to the ‘527 and ‘440 patents. 70 Fed. Reg. 42589-91. The



Commission determined not to review the ID’s findings of fact and conclusions ef law with
respecf to the ‘736 patent, thereby adopting them. /d. Accordingly, the Corﬁmission found no
viblation of section 337 witﬁ respect to the 736 pateﬁtv. 1d |

On review, the Comnﬁssion determined that there-is a violation of section 337 as to claim
3 of the ‘527 patent, but no violation of the statute as to the remaining claims in issue of the ‘527
patent (viz., claims 1 and 2) and no violation és to the elaims in issue of the ‘440 patent (viz.,
claims 1, 5; 7,8,10, 13, 14, 19, and 21); 70 Fed. Reg. 57620. On September 28, 2005, the
Commission issued a limited exclusion order prohibiting the unlicensed entry of chips or chipsets
covered by claim 3 of the ‘527 patent manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf of
respondent MediaTek, Inc., and optical storage devices coﬁtaining such covered chips or chipsets
that are manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf of respondents Artronix chhnology,
Inc; ASUSTek Computer, Inc.; ASUS Compﬁter International; MSI Computer Corporation;
TEAC Americe Inc.; EPO Science and Technology, Inc.; LITE-ON Information Technology
Corp.; Micro—Star‘ International‘ Co., Ltd.; TEAC Corp.; or Ultima Electronics Corp (collectively,
with MediaTek, Inc. “respondents”). Id. The Commission also determined to issue cease and
desist orders directed to Artronix Technology, Inc.; ASUSTek Computer, Inc.; AS.US Computer
International; MSI Computer Corporation; TEAC America Inc.; EPO Science and Technology,
Inc.; and LITE-ON Information Teehno]ogy Cerp. Id.

Qn February 10, 2006, complainants Zoran and QOak and respondent MediaTek filed,
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § l337(k) and Commission rule 210.76(a) (19 C.F.R. § 210.76_(3)), ajoint
pet_ition for rescission of the limited exclusion order and the cease and desist orders issued in the

investigation on the basis of a settlement agreement that resolves the underlying dispute between



all of the partiéé, including ail of the other respondents. On February 22, 2006, the Commission
investigative attorney filed a response supporting the joint petition. | |

Having reviewed the parties’ submissions, thé Commission has determined ihat the
settlement agreement satisfies the rcquiremeﬁt of Commiésion rule 210.76(a)(1), 19 C.FR.
§ 210.76(a)(1), for changed cpnditions of fact or law. The Commission therefore has determined
to rescind the remedial orders previously issued in thi§ investigation.

Acéordingly, the Commission hereby ORDERS that:

1. The joint petition for rescission of the limited exclusion order and the cease and
desist orders previously issued in this investigation is granted.

2. The Secretary shall serve copies of this Order upon each party of record in this
investigation and the Secretary of the Treasury.

b bOIt ) i ':

to the Comm1ssxon

By Order of the Commission.

Issued: March 17, 2006



CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS AND CHIPSETS 337-TA-506
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS
AND OPTICAL STORAGE DEVICES

CONFIDENTIAL CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached NOTICE OF COMMISSION DETERMINATION TO

RESCIND REMEDIAL ORDERS was served upon the Commission Investigative Attorney, Karen Norton, Esq., and
all parties via first class mail and air mail on March 17, 2006.

Washington, DC 20436

ON BEHALF OF COMPLAINANT ZORAN ON BEHALF OF TEAC CORPORATION AND
CORPORATION AND OAK TECHNOLOGY, TEAC AMERICA, INC.:
INC.: .
Mark S. Zolno, Esq.
John Allcock, Esq. KATTEN MUCHIN ZAVIS ROSENMAN
Mark Fowler, Esq. 525 West Monroe Street
DLA PIPER RUDNICK GRAY CARY USLLP Suite 1600
2000 University Avenue Chicago, Illinois 60661-3693
East Palo Alto, CA 94303 ON BEHALF OF ASUSTEK COMPUTER. INC.;
P-650-833-2113 CREATIVE TECHNOLOGY, LTD.; CREATIVE
F-650-833-2001 LABS, INC.; JIANGSU SHINCO ELECTRONIC
GROUP CO., LTD.; LITE-ON INFORMATION
Stanley J. Panikowski, Esq. TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION; MEDIA TEK,
DLA PIPER RUDNICK GRAY CARY USLLP INC.; MINTEK DIGITAL; SHINCO!
401 B Street INTERNATIONAL AV CO., LTD.;: TEAC
Suite 1700 CORPORATION; TEAC AMERICA, INC.;
San Diego, CA 92101-4297 TERAPIN TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
P-619-699-2643 AND TERAPIN TECHNOLOGY:
F-619-699-2701
Michael A. Ladra, Esq.
Linda M. Weinberg, Esq. James C. Otteson, Esq.
DLA PIPER RUDNICK GRAY CARY USLLP WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI
1200 Nineteenth Street, N.W. 650 Page Mill Road
Washington, D.C. 20036-2412 Palo Alto, CA 94306
P-202-861-6673 _ P-650-493-9300
F-202-223-2085 F-650-493-6811
Smith R. Brittingham IV, Esq. ON BEHALF OF MEDIA TEC, INC.:
Elizabeth A. Niemeyer, Esq.
FINNEGAN, HENDERSON, FARABOW, William H. Wright, Esq.
GARRETT & DUNNER LLP HOGAN AND HARTSON LLP
901 New York Avenue, NW 500 South Grand Avenue
Washington, DC 20001-4413 Los Angeles, CA 90071

P-202-408-4000
F-202-408-4400



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS Inv. No. 337-T.§§SO&;;
AND CHIPSETS AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING
SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC OPTICAL
STORAGE DEVICES

' o o = N N N

NOTICE OF FINAL DETERMINATION; ISSUANCE OF LIMITED EXCLUSION
ORDER AND CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS; TERMINATION OF INVESTIGATION

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has found a
violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. § 337) based on the infringement of
one asserted claim of one asserted patent and has issued a limited exclusion order and cease and
desist orders in the above-captioned investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Clara Kuehn, Esq., Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone (202) 205-3012. Copies of the Commission orders, the Commission opinion in
support thereof, and all other nonconfidential documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to
5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street,
S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone 202-205-2000.

General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its
Internet server (http://www.usitc.gov). The public record for this investigation may be viewed on
the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS-ON-LINE) at http.//edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired
persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on 202-205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

The Commission instituted this investigation on April 14, 2004, based on a complaint filed
on behalf of Zoran Corporation and Oak Technology, Inc. both of Sunnyvale, CA (collectively
“complainants”). 69 Fed. Reg. 19876. The complaint, as supplemented, alleged violations of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 in the importation into the United States, the sale for



importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain optical disk
controller chips and chipsets and products containing same, including DVD players and PC
optical storage devices, by reason of infringement of claims 1-12 of U.S. Patent No. 6,466,736
(the ‘736 patent), claims 1-3 of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527 (the ‘527 patent), and claims 1-35 of
U.S. Patent No. 6,546,440 (the ‘440 patent). Id

The notice of investigation identified 12 respondents. 69 Fed. Reg. 19876. On June 7,
2004, the ALJ issued an ID (Order No. 5) terminating the investigation as to two respondents on
the basis of a consent order and settlement agreement. On June 22, 2004, the ALJ issued an ID
(Order No. 7) granting complainants’ motion to amend the complaint and notice of investigation
to add nine additional respondents. Those IDs were not reviewed by the Commission.

On December 22, 2004, the ALJ issued an ID (Order No. 33) granting complainants’
motion to terminate the investigation in part with respect to claims 2—6, 8—10, and 11 of the ‘736
patent and claims 24, 6, 9, 11, 12, 15-18, 20, 22-34, and 35 of the ‘440 patent. On January 28,
2005, the ALJ issued an ID (Order No. 37) granting complainants’ motion to terminate the
investigation in part with respect to claim 12 of the ‘736 patent. Neither ID was reviewed by the
Commission. Thus, at the time that Order No. 37 issued, the claims remaining for determination
on the merits were claims 1 and 7 of the ‘736 patent; claims 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 13, 14, 19, and 21 of
the ‘440 patent; and claims 1, 2, and 3 of the ‘527 patent.

An eight-day evidentiary hearing was held on February 7—-12, and 14-15, 2005.

On May 16, 2005, the ALJ issued his final ID, findings of fact and conclusions of law,
and recommended determination on remedy and bonding. The ALJ concluded that there was a
violation of section 337 based on his findings that (a) the accused products infringe claim 3 of
the €527 patent, (b) the ‘527 patent is not unenforceable, (c) claim 3 of the ‘527 patent is not
invalid, and (d) complainants have satisfied the domestic industry requirement with respect to the
‘527 patent. Although the ALJ found that the other asserted claims of the ‘527 patent (claims 1
and 2) are not invalid, he found that the accused products do not infringe those claims. The ALJ
found no violation with respect to the other patents in issue. He found that the accused products
do not infringe any asserted claim of the ‘440 or ‘736 patents and that complainants have not
satisfied the domestic industry requirement with respect to those patents. He also found that the
asserted claims of the ‘440 and ‘736 patents are not invalid and that those patents are not
unenforceable.

On May 27, 2005, complainants and respondents each petitioned for review of portions of
the final ID. On June 6, 2005, complainants, respondents, and the IA filed responses to the
petitions for review.

On July 19, 2005, the Commission determined to review the ID in part. 70 Fed.
Reg. 42589-91. Specifically, the Commission determined to review the ID’s findings of fact and
conclusions of law with respect to the ‘527 and ‘440 patents. Jd. The Commission determined
not to review the ID’s findings of fact and conclusions of law with respect to the 736 patent,
thereby adopting them. Id Accordingly, the Commission found no violation of section 337 with
respect to the ‘736 patent. /d. The Commission also determined to review and modify the ID to
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clarify that respondents accused of infringing only the asserted claims of the 736 patent (viz.,
respondents Audiovox Corporation; Initial Technology, Inc.; Mintek Digital, Inc.; Shinco
International AV Co., Ltd.; Changzhou Shinco Digital Technology Co., Ltd.; Jiangsu Shinco
Electronic Group Co., Ltd.; Terapin Technology Pte., Ltd. [formerly known as Teraoptix d/b/a
Terapin Technology] of Singapore; and Terapin Technology U.S. [formerly also known as
Teraoptix]) are not in violation of Section 337. Id.

In its notice of review, the Commission invited the parties to file written submissions on
the issues under review, posed briefing questions for the parties to answer, and invited interested
persons to file written submissions on the issues of remedy, the public interest, and bonding. Id.

All parties filed initial submissions on August 1, 2005. Also on August 1, 2005,
respondents filed a letter requesting clarification of the scope of briefing question 3(a) in the
Commission’s notice of review, and permission to brief new issues not previously raised. On
August 8, 2005, all parties filed reply submissions.

The Commission has determined to deny respondents’ August 1, 2005, letter request for
permission to brief new issues that were not previously raised, and respondents’ August 8, 2005,
request under 19 C.F.R. § 210.45(a).

Having examined the record in this investigation, including the submissions and
responses thereto, the Commission has determined that there is a violation of section 337 as to
claim 3 of the ‘527 patent, but no violation of the statute as to the remaining claims in issue of
the ‘527 patent (viz., claims 1 and 2) and no violation as to the claims in issue of the ‘440 patent
(viz., claims 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 13, 14, 19, and 21).

The Commission has determined that respondents waived their arguments (1) that the
asserted claims are invalid under 35 U.S.C. § 102(f) for non-joinder of Western Digital engineers
other than Shishir Shah and (2) concerning the respective dates of reduction to practice for
Western Digital’s HISIDE chip and the claims of the ‘440 and ‘527 patents.

The Commission has determined to adopt the ID with the following modifications and
exceptions. The Commission has determined to modify the ID’s construction of “controller” to
reflect that, although the limitation “optical drive controller” means “a device or group of devices
to control data communications between a host computer and the optical disk drive electronics”
(ID at 80), configurations wherein a “controller requires a translator card or other intervening
circuitry between the controller and the IDE bus to translate or manipulate command data” were
disclaimed during prosecution. The Commission has determined to affirm the balance of the
ID’s claim construction.

The Commission has determined to vacate the ID’s finding that there is a conception date
of the asserted claims of the ‘527 and ‘440 patents at least by April 21, 1993, (see ID at 129 n.45,
142), and has further determined to vacate the statement (ID at 142) that expressly relies on the
April 21, 1993, conception date to make an alternate finding, viz., “[e]ven assuming that
conception of a transport mechanism that attached a CD-ROM drive to an IDE/ATA bus was
relevant, there is no contemporaneous documentation showing conception in December 1992 or a



coriception even before the April 1993 conception of the claimed inventions in issue.”

The Commission has determined to vacate the ALJ’s infringement findings with respect
to the MT1528, MT1558, and MT1668 because the record does not support such findings.

The Commission has determined to clarify that complainants met the economic prong of
the domestic industry requirement based on “substantial investment” in “engineering, research
and development,” rather than through licensing. The Commission has also determined to
correct certain typographical errors on pages 75-76, 129, and 156 of the ID.

The Commission also made determinations on the issues of remedy, the public interest,
and bonding. The Commission determined that the appropriate form of relief is a limited
exclusion order prohibiting the unlicensed entry of chips or chipsets covered by claim 3 of U.S.
Patent No. 6,584,527 manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf of Mediatek, Inc. of
Hsin-Chu City, Taiwan, and optical storage devices containing such covered chips or chipsets
that are manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf of Artronix Technology, Inc. of Brea,
CA; ASUSTek Computer, Inc. of Taipei, Taiwan; ASUS Computer International of Fremont,
CA; MSI Computer Corporation of City of Industry, CA; TEAC America Inc. of Montebello,
CA; EPO Science and Technology, Inc. of Taipei, Taiwan; LITE-ON Information Technology
Corp. of Taipei, Taiwan; Micro-Star International Co., Ltd. of Taipei Hsien, Taiwan; TEAC
Corp. of Tokyo, Japan; or Ultima Electronics Corp. of Taipei Hsien, Taiwan. The Commission
has also determined to issue cease and desist orders directed to Artronix Technology, Inc.;
ASUSTek Computer, Inc.; ASUS Computer International; MSI Computer Corporation; TEAC
America Inc.; EPO Science and Technology, Inc.; and LITE-ON Information Technology Corp.

The Commission also determined that the public interest factors enumerated in 19 U.S.C.
§ 1337(d) and (f) do not preclude issuance of the remedial orders, and that the bond during the
Presidential period of review shall be set at 100 percent of the entered value for any covered
chips or chipsets and $4.43 per unit for any optical storage device containing covered chips or
chipsets.

The authority for the Commission's determinations is contained in section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337), and in sections 210.45 - 210.51 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. §§ 210.45 - 210.51).

By order of the Commission.

Y.
Marilyn R. A
Secretary ts

: ¢ Commission
Issued: September 28, 2005



CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS AND CHIPSETS 337-TA-506
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS

AND OPTICAL STORAGE DEVICES

PUBLIC CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Marilyn R. Abbott, hereby certify that the attached NOTICE OF FINAL DETERMINATION;
ISSUANCE OF LIMITED EXCLUSION ORDER AND CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS;
TERMINATION OF INVESTIGATION was served upon the Commission Investigative Attorney,
‘Karen Norton, Esq., and all parties via first class mail and air mail on September 28, 2005.

ON BEHALF OF COMPLAINTANT
ZORAN CORPORATION AND OAK
TECHNOLOGY, INC.:

John Allcock, Esq.

Mark Fowler, Esq.

Gray Cary Ware & Freidenrich LLP
2000 University Avenue

East Palo Alto, CA 94303

- Smith R. Brittingham IV
Elizabeth A. Niemeyer
Finnegan, Henderson, Farabow,

Garrett & Dunner, LLP
901 New York Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20001-4413

ON BEHALF OF TEAC CORPORATION

AND TEAC AMERICA, INC.:

John Smirnow, Esq.

Mark S. Zolno, Esq.

Katten Muchin Zavis Rosenman
525 West Monroe Street

Suite 1600

Chicago, Illinois 60661-3693

Do £ Lbett-

Marilyn R. Abbot/ Secretary

U.S. International Trade Commission
500 E Street, SW — Room 112
Washington, DC 20436

ON BEHALF OF ASUSTEK COMPUTE
INC.: JTANGSU SHINCO ELECTRONIC
GROUP CO.. LTD.; LITE-ON
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
CORPORATION: MEDIA TEK, INC.;
MINTEK DIGITAL: SHINCO
INTERNATIONAL AV CO., LTD.; TEAC
CORPORATION: TEAC AMERICA, INC.;
TERAPIN TECHNOLOGY
CORPORATION AND TERAPIN
TECHNOLOGY:

Michael A. Ladra, Esq.

James C. Otteson, Esg.

Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati
650 Page Mill Road

Palo Alto, CA 94306-1050

ON BEHALF OF MEDIA TEC, INC.:

William H. Wright, Esq.
Hogan and Hartson LLP
500 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90071

RESPONDENTS:

Artronix Technology, Inc.
350 Ranger Avenue, Unit C
Brea, California 92821

ASUS Computer International
44370 Nobel Drive
Fremont, California 94538
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Audiovox Corporation
150 Marcus Boulevard
Hauppauge, New York 11788

EPO Science & Technology, Inc.
4F. 310 Chukwang Road
Taipei, Taiwan

Initial Technology, Inc.
1839 Yeager Avenue
LaVeme, CA 91750

Micro-star International Co., Ltd.
No. 69, Li-De Street

Jung-He City

Taipei Hsein, Taiwan

MSI Computer Corp.
901 Canada Court
City of Industry, CA 91748

Shinco Digital Technology, Ltd.
No. 1, Gufang (E) Road

Hutang Town

Changzhou, Jiangsu China 213104

Ultima Electronics Corp.

9F. 18 Alley 1, Lane 768, Sec. 4
Pa Te Road

Taipei, Taiwan



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK CONTROLLER CHIPS Inv. No. 337-TA-506
AND CHIPSETS AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING
SAME, INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC OPTICAL
STORAGE DEVICES

N N N N/ N N N’ N

LIMITED EXCLUSION ORDER

The Commission has determined that there is a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act
of 1930 (19 U.S.C. § 1337) in the unlawful importation, sale for importation, and sale after
importation by MediaTek, Inc. of optical disk controller chips and chipsets that infringe claim 3
of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527 (“the ‘527 patent”). In addition, the Commission has determined
that fhere is a violation of Section 337 in the unlawful importation, sale for importation and sale
after importation of optical storage devices incorporating optical disk controller chips and
chipsets that infringe claim 3 of the ‘52.7 patent by Artronix Technology Inc.; ASUSTek
Computer Inc.; ASUS Computer International; EPO Science & Technology, Inc.; LITE-ON
Information Technology Corp.; Micro-Star International Co., Ltd.; MSI Computer Corp.; TEAC
America, Inc.; TEAC Corp.; and Ultima Electronics Corp. (collectively, “Respondents”).

Having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the written submissions of the
parties, the Commission has made its determination on the issues of remedy, the public interest,

and bonding. The Commission has determined that the appropriate form of relief is a limited



exciusion ordzr prohibiting the unlicensed entry of covered chips and chipsets manufactured by
or on behalf of MediaTek and covered optical storage devices manufactured by or on

behalf of any of the Respondents. The Commission has also determined to issue cease and desist
orders directed to Artronix Technology Inc.; ASUSTek Computer, Inc.; ASUS Computer
International; EPO Science & Technology, Inc.; LITE-ON Information Technology Corp.; MSI
Computer Corp.; and TEAC America, Inc.

The Commission has determined that the public interest factors enumerated in 19 U.S.C.
§ 1337 (d) and (f) do not preclude issuance of the limited exclusion order o;' the cease and desist
orders, and that the bond during the Presidential review period shall be in the amount of 100% of
the entered value for any covered chips or chipsets imported separately or within circuit board
modules or carriers and $4.43 per unit for any optical storage device containiﬁg covered chips or
chipsets.

Accordingly, the Commission hereby ORDERS that:

1. Chips or chipsets, including chips or chipsets incorporated into circuit board modules
and carriers, that are covered by claim 3 6f U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527 and are manufactured
abroad or imported by or on behalf of Mediatek, Inc. or any of its affiliated companies, parents,
subsidiaries, contractors, or other related business entities, or their successors or assigns, and
optical storage devices containing same that are manufactured abroad or imported by or on behalf
of Respondenté or any of their affiliated companjes; parents, subsidiaries, contractors, or other
related business entities, or their successors or assigns, are excluded from entry for consumption
into the United States, entry for consumption from a foreign-trade zone, or withdrawal from a .

warehouse for consumption, for the remaining term of the patent except under license of the



patent owner or as provided by law.

2. Chips and chipsets, including chips or chipsets incorporated into circuit board modules
and carriers, and optical storage devices containing covered chips or chipsets described in
paragraph 1 of this Order are entitled to entry for consumption into the United States, entry for
consumption from a foreign-trade zone, or withdrawal from a warehouse for consumption, under
bond in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of entered value for covered chips or chipsets
imported separately or within circuit board modules or carriers, or $4.43 per optical storage
device containing covered chips or chipsets, pursuant to subsection (j) of section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j), and the Presidential Memorandum for the
United States Trade Representative of July 21, 2005 (70 Fed. Reg. 43251), from the day after this
Order is received by the United States Trade Representative until such time as the United States
Trade Representative notifies the Commission that he approves or disapproves this action but, in
any event, not later than sixty (60) days after the date of receipt of this action.

3. When the U.S. Bureau of Customs and Border Protection (Customs) is unable to
determine by inspection whether chips or chipsets, including chips or chipsets incorporated into
circuit board modules and carriers, or optical storage devices fall within the scope of this Order,
it may, in its discretion, accept a certification, pursuant to procedures specified and deemed
necessary by Customs, from persons seeking to import said chips or chipsets, including chips or
chipsets incorporated into circuit board modules and carriers, or optical storage devices that they
are familiar with the terms of this Order, that they have made éppropriate inquiry, and thereupon
state that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the products being imported are not excluded

from entry under paragraph 1 of this Order. At its discretion, Customs may require persons who



have provided the certiﬁcétion described in this paragraph to furnish such records or analyses as
are necessary to substantiate the certification.

4. In accordance with 19 U.S.C. § 1337(1), the provisions of this Order shall not apply to
chips or chipsets, including chips or chipsets iricorporated into circuit board modules and
carriers, or optical storage products containing same that are imported by and for the use of the
United States, imported for, and to be used for, the United States with the authorization or
consent of the Government.

5. The Commission may modify this Order in accordance with the procedures described
in Rule 210.76 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. § 210.76.

6. The Secretary shall serve copies of this Order upon each party of record in this
investigation and upon the Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Justice, the Federal Trade Commission, and Customs.

7. Notice of this Order shall be published in the Federal Register.

By Order of the Commission.

Issued: September 28, 2005



 UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. '

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK
CONTROLLER CHIPS AND CHIPSETS
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME,
INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC
OPTICAL STORAGE DEVICES

Investigation No. 337-TA-506

ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT Artronix Technology, Inc., 350 Ranger Avenue, Unit
C, Brea, California, (“Resi)ondent” or “Artronix”), cease and desist from conducting any of the
following activities in the United States: importing, selling, distributing, marketing, consigning,
transferring (except for exportation), offering for sale in the United States and soliciting U.S.
agents or distributors for optical storage devices containing certain optical disk controller chips
and chipsets in violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337.

I
Definitions

As used in this Order:

(A) “Commission” shall mean the United States International Trade Commission.

(B) “Zoran” shall mean Zoran Corporaﬁon, 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(C) “Oak” shall mean Oak Technology, Inc., 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(D) “Complainants” shall mean Zoran and Oak.



(E) “Respondent” and “Artronix” shall mean Artronix Technology, Inc., 350 Ranger
Avenue, Unit C, Brea, Califomia.

(F) “Person” shall mean an individual, or any nongovernmental partnership, firm,
association, corporation, or other legal or business entity other than the Respondent or its
majority owned or controlled subsidiaries, their successors, or assigns.

(G) “United States” shall mean the fifty States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto
Rico.

(H) The terms “import” and “importation” refer to importation for entry for
consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign-trade zone, and withdrawal from warehouse
for consumption under the Customs laws of the United States.

(I) The term “covered product” shall include, without limitation, optical storage devices
incorporating optical disk controller chips and chipsets that are covered by claim 3 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527,

1L
Applicability

The provisions of this Cease and Desist Order shall apply to Respondent and to any of its
principals, stockholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, licensees, contractors,
distributors, controlled (whether by stock ownership or otherwise) and majority owned business
entities, successors, and assigns, and to each of them, insofar as they are engaging in conduct

prohibited by Section III, infra, for, with, or otherwise on behalf of Respondent.



.
Conduct Prohibited

The following conduct of Respondent in the United States is prohibited by the Order. For
the remaining term of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527, Respondent shall not:

(A) import or sell for importation into the United States covered product except under
license of the patent owner;

(B) market, distribute, offer for sale, sell, consign, or otherwise transfer (except for
exportation) in the United States imported covered product except under license of the patent
owner;

(C) solicit U.S. agents or distributors for covered product except under license of the
patent owner; or

(D) aid or abet other entities in the importation, sale for importation, sale after
importation, transfer, or distribution of covered product in the United States except under license
of the patent owner.

Iv.
Conduct Permitted

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, specific conduct otherwise prohibited
by the terms of this Order shall be permitted if, in a written instrument, the owner of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527 licenses or authorizes such specific conduct, or such specific conduct is related to

the importation or sale of covered product by or for the United States.



V.
Reporting

For purposes of this reporting requirement, the yearly reporting periods shall commence
on July 1 of each year and shall end on the subsequent June 30. However, the first yearly report
required uncier this section shall cover the period from the date of issuance of this Order through
June 30, 2006.

Within thirty (30) days of the last day of the reporting period, Respondent shall report to
the Commission the quantity in units and the value in dollars of covered product that Respondent
has imported or sold in the United States after importation during the reporting period and the
quantity in urﬁts and value in dollars of reported covered product that remain in inventory in the
United States at the end of the reporting period. This reporting requirement shall continue in
. force until such time as Respondent will have truthfully reported, in two consecutive timely filed
yearly reports, that it has no inventory of covered product in the United States.

Any failure to make the required report or the filing of any false or inaccurate report shall
constitute a violation of this Order, and the submission of a false or inaccurate report may be
referred to the U.S. Department of Justice as a possible criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

VI.‘
Record-keeping and Inspection

(A) For the purpose of securing compliance with this Order, Respondent shall retain any

and all records relating to the exportation to and importation into the United States and the sale,

offer for sale, marketing, or distribution in the United States of covered product, made and



received in the usual and ordinary course of business, whether in detail or in summary form, for a
period of two (2) yearé from the close of the fiscal year to which they vertain.

(B) For the purposes of determining or securing compliance with this Order and for no
other pufpose, and subject to any privilege recognized by the federal courts of the United States,
duly authorized representatives of the Commission, upon reasonable written notice by the
Commission or its staff, shall be permitted access and the right to inspect and copy in
Respondent's principal offices during office hours, and in the presence of counsel or other
representatives if Respondent so chooses, all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda, and other records and documents, both in detail and in summary form as are
required to be retained by subparagraph VI(A) of this Order.

VIIL.
Service of Cease and Desist Order

Respondent is ordered and directed to:

(A) Serve, within fifteen (15) days after the effective date of this Order, a copy of this
Order upon each of its respective officers, directors, managing agents, agents, and employees
who have any responsibility for the importation, mérketing, distribution, or sale of imported
covered product in the United States;

(B) Serve, within fifteen (15) days after the successiqn of any persons referred to in
subparagraph Vﬁ (A) of this Order, a copy of the Order upon each successor; and

(C) Maintain such records as will show the name, title, and address of each person upon
whom the Order has been served, as described in subparagraphs VII(A) and VII(B) of this Order,

together with the date on which service was made.



The obligations set forth in sﬁbparagraphs VII(B) and VII(C) shall remain in eifect until

June 22, 2014, the date of expiration of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527.
VIIIL
Confidentiality

Any request for confidential treatment of information obtained by the Commission
pursuant to Sections V and VI of the Order should be in accordance with section 201.6 of the
Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure. 19 C.F.R. § 201.6. For aﬂ reports for which
confidential treatment is sought, Respondent must provide a public version of such report with

confidential information redacted.

IX.
Enforcement
Violation of this Order may result in any of the actions specified in section 210.75 of the
Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. § 210.75, including an action for civil
peﬁalties in accordance with section 337(f) of the Tariff Act 0f 1930, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f), and
any other action as the Commission may deem appropriate. In determining whether Respondent
is in violation of this Order, the Commission may infer facts adverse to Respondent if

Respondent fails to provide adequate or timely information.



X.
Modification

The Commission may amend this Order on its own motion or in accordance with the
procedure described in section 210.76 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19
C.F.R. §210.76.

XI.
Bonding

The conduct prohibited by Section III of this Order may be continued during the sixty
(60) day period in Which this Order is under review by the United States Trade Representative
pursuant to section 337(j) of the Tariff Act of 1930, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j), and the Presidential
Memorandum for the United States Trade Representative of July 21, 2005 (70 Fed. Reg. 4325 1),
subject to Respondent posting a bond of $4.43 per unit for covered products. This bond
provision does not apply to conduct that is otherwise permitted by Section IV of this Order. -
Covered product imported on or after the date of issuance of this order is subject to the entry
bond as set forth in the limited exclusion order issued by the Commission, and is not subject to
this bond provision.

The bond is to be posted in accordance with the procedures established by the
Commission for the posting of bonds by complainants in connection with the issuance of
temporafy exclusion orders. See 19 C.F.R. § 210.68. The bond and any accompanying
documentation is to be provided to and approved by the Commission prior to the commencement
of conduct which is otherwise prohibited by Section III of this Order.

The bond is to be forfeited in the event that the United States Trade Representative



approves, or does not disapprove within the Presidential review period, this Order, unless the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, ir a final judgment, reverses any Commission final
determination and order as to Respondent on appeal, or unless Respondent exports the products
subject to this bond or destroys them and provides certification to that effect satisfactory to the
Commission.

The bond is to be released in the event the United States Trade Representative
disapproves this Order and no subsequent order is issued by the Commission and approved, or
not disapproved, by the United States Trade Representative, upon service on Respondent of an
order issued by the Commission based upon application therefore made by Respondent to the
Commission.

By Order of the Commission.

-

L2
Marilyn R. ﬂ
Secretary td the’Commission

Issued: September 28, 2005



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK
CONTROLLER CHIPS AND CHIPSETS
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME,
INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC
OPTICAL STORAGE DEVICES

Investigation No. 337-TA-506

ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT ASUSTek Computer, Inc., 150.Li-Te Road, Peitou,
Taipei, Taiwan 112 (“Respondent” or “ASUSTek™), cease and desist from conducting any of the
following activities in the United States: importing, selling, distributing, marketing, consigning,
transferring (except for exportation), offering for sale in the United States and soliciting U.S.
agents or distributors for optical storage devices containing certain optical disk controller chips
and chipsets in violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337.

L |
Definitions

As used in this Order:

(A) “Commission” shall mean the United States International Trade Commission.

(B) “Zoran” shall mean Zoran Corporation, 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(C) “Oak” shall mean Oak Technology, Inc., 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(D) “Complainants” shall mean Zoran and Oak.



(E} “Respondent” and “ASUSTek” shall mean ASUSTek Computer, Inc., 150 Li-Te
Road, Peitou, Taipei, Taiwan 112.

(F) “Person” shall mean an individual, or any nongovernmental partnership, firm,
association, corporation, or other legal or business entity other than the Respondent or its
majority owned or controlled subsidiaries, their successors, or assigns.

(G) “United States” shall mean the fifty States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto
Rico.

(H) The terms “import” and “importation” refer to importation for entry for
consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign-trade zone, and withdrawal from warehouse
for consumption under the Customs laws of the United States.

(I The ierm “covered product” shall include, without limitation, optical storage devices
incorporating optical disk confroller chips and chipsets that are covered By claim 3 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527.

1L |
Applicability

The provisions of this Cease and Desist Order shall apply to Respondent and to any of its
principals, stockholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, licensees, contractors,
distributors, controlled (whether by stock ownership or otherwise) and majority owned business
entities, successors, and assigns, and to each of them, insofar as they are engaging in conduct

prohibited by Section III, infr-a, for, with, or otherwise on behalf of Respondent.



I11.
Conduct Prohibited

The following conduct of Respondent in the United States is prohibitedAby the Order. For
the remaining term of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527, Respondent shall not:

(A) import or sell for importation into the United States covered product except under
license of the patent owner;

(B) market, distribute, offer for sale, sell, consign, or otherwise transfer (except for
exportation) in the United States imported covered product except under license of the patent
owner;

(C) solicit U.S. agents or distributors for covered product except under license of the
patent owner, or

(D) aid or abet other entities in the impoftétion, sale for importation, sale after
importation, transfer, or distribution of covered product in the United States except under license
of the patent owner.

Iv.
Conduct Permitted

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, specific conduct otherwise prohibited
by the terms of this Order shall be permitted if, in a written instrument, the owner of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527 licenses or authorizes such specific conduct, or such specific conduct is related to

the importation or sale of covered product by or for the United States.



V.
Reporting

For purposes of this reporting requirement, the yearly reporting periods shall commence
on July 1 of each year and shall end on the subsequent June 30; However, the first yearly report
required under this section shall cover the period from the date of issuance of this Order through
June 30, 2006.

Within thirty (30) days of the last day of the reporting period, Respondent shall report to
the Commission the quantity in units and the value in dollars of covered product that Respondent
has imported or sold in the United States after importation during the reporting period and the
quantity in units and value in dollars of reported covered product that remain in inventory in the
United States at the end of the reporting period. This reporting requirement shall continue in
force until such time as Respondent will have truthfully reported, in two consecutive timely filed
yearly reports, that it has no inventory of covered product in the United States.

Any failure to make the required report or the filing of any false or inaccurate report shall
constitute a violation of this Order, and the submission of a false or inaccurate report may be
referred to the U.S. Department of Justice as a possible criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

VI
Record-keeping and Inspection

(A) For the purpose of securing compliance with this Order, Respondent shall retain any

and all records relating to the exportation to and importation into the United States and the sale,

offer for sale, marketing, or distribution in the United States of covered product, made and



received in the usual and ordinary course of business, whether in detail or in summary form, for a
period of two (2) years from the close of the fiscal year to which they pertain.

(B) For the purpdsés of determining or securing compliance with this Order and for no
other purpose, and subject to any privilege recognized by the federal courts of the United States,
duly authorized representatives of the Commission, upon reasonable Written notice by the
Commission or its staff, shall be permitted access and the right to inspect and copy in
Respondent's principal offices during office hours, and in the presence of counsel or oﬂ;er
representatives if Respondent so chooses, all books, ledgers, accounts, corfespondence,
memoranda, and other records and documents, both in detail and in summary form as are
required to be retained by subparagraph VI(A) of this Order.

VIIL
Service of Cease and Desist Order

Respondent is ordered and directed to:

(A) Serve, w1thm fifteen (15) days after the effective date of this Order, a copy of this
Order upon each of its respective officers, directors, managing agents, agents, and employees
who have any responsibility for the importation, marketing, distribution, or sale of imported
covered product in the United States;

(B) Serve, within fifteen (15) days after the succession of any persons referred to in
subparagraph VII (A) of this Order, a copy of the Order upon each successor; and

(C) Maintain such records as will show the name, title, and address of each person upon
whom the Order has been served, as described in subparagraphs VII(A) and VII(B) of this Order,

together with the date on which service was made.



The obligations set forth in subparagraphs VII(B) and VII(C) shall remain in effect until

June 22, 2014, the date of expiration of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527.
VIIIL.
Confidentiality

Any request for confidential treatment of information obtained by the Commission
pursuant to Sections V and VI of the Order should be in accordance with section 201.6 of the
Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure. 19 C.F.R. § 201.6. For all reports for which
. confidential treatment is sought, Respondent must provide a public version of such repdrt with

confidential information redacted.

IX.
Enforcement
Violation of this Order may result in any of the actions specified in section 210.75 of the
Comxﬁission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 C.F.R. § 210.75, including an action for civil
penalties in accordance with section 337(f) of the Tariff Act of 1930, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f), and
any other action as the Commission may deem appropriate. In determining whether Respondent
is in violation of this Order, the Commission may infer facts adverse to Respondent if

Respondent fails to provide adequate or timely information.



X.
Modification

The Commission may amend this Order on its own motion or in accordance with the
procedure described in section 210.76 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19
C.F.R. § 210.76.

XI.
Bonding

The conduct prohibited by Section II of this Order may be continued during the sixty
(60) day period in which this Order is under review by the United States Trade Representative
pursuant to section 337(j) of the Tariff Act of 1930, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j), and the Presidential
Memorandum for the United States Trade Representative of July 21, 2005 (70 Fed. Reg. 43251),
subject to Respondent posting a bond of $4.43 per unit for covered products. This bond
provision does not apply to conduct that is otherwise permitted by Section IV of this Order.
Covered product imported on or after the date of issuance of this order is subject to the entry
bond as set forth in the limited exclusion order issued by the Commission, and is not subject to
this bond provision.

The bond is to be posted in accordance with the procedures established by the
Commission for the posting of bonds by complainants in connection with the issuance of
temporary exclusion orders. See 19 C.F.R. § 210.68. The bond and any accompanying
documentation is to be provided to and approved by the Commission prior to the commencement
of conduct which is otherwise prohibited by Section III of this Order.

The bond is to be forfeited in the event that the United States Trade Representative



approves, or does not disapprove within the Presidential review period, this Order, unless the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, in a final judgment, reverses any Commission final
determination and order as to Respondent on appeal, or unless Respondent exports the products
subject to this bond or destroys them and provides certification to that effect satisfactory to the
Commission.

The bond is to be released in the event the United States Trade Representative
disapproves this Order and no subsequent order is issued by the Commission and approved, or
not disapproved, by the United States Trade Representative, upon service on Respondent of an
order issued by the Commission based upon application therefore made by Respondent to the
Commission.

By Order of the Commission.

Issued: September 28, 2005



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

In the Matter of

CERTAIN OPTICAL DISK
CONTROLLER CHIPS AND CHIPSETS
AND PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME,
INCLUDING DVD PLAYERS AND PC
OPTICAL STORAGE DEVICES

Investigation No. 337-TA-506

ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT EPO Science & Technology, Inc., 4F, 310 Chukwang
Road, Taipei, Taiwan (“Respondent” or “EPO”), cease and desist from conducting any of the
following activities in the United States: importing, selling, distributing, marketing, consigning,
transferring (except for exportation), offering for sale in the United States and soliciting U.S.
agents or distributors for optical storage devices containing certain optical disk controller chips
and chipsets in violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337.

L
Definitions

As used in this Order:

(A) “Commission” shall mean the United States International Trade Commission.

(B) “Zoran” shall mean Zoran Corporation, 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(C) “Oak” shall mean Oak Technology, Inc., 1390 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California.

(D) “Complainants” shall mean Zoran and Oak.

(E) “Respondent” and “EPO” shall mean EPO Science & Technology, Inc., 4F, 310



Chukwang Road, Taipei, Taiwan.

(F) “Person” shall mean an individual, or any nongovernmental partnership, firm,
association, corporation, or other legal or business entity other than the Respondent or its
majority owned or controlled s_ubsidiaries,'their successors, or assigns.

(G) “United States” shall mean the fifty States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto
Rico.

(H) The terms “import” and “importation” refer to importation for entry for
consumption, entry for consumption from a foreign-trade zone, and withdrawal from warehouse
for consumption under the Customs laws of the United States.

(I) The term “covered product” shall include, without limitation, optical storage devices
incorporating optical disk controller chips and chipsets that are covered by claim 3 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527. |

IL
Applicability .

The provisions of this Cease and Desist Order shall apply to Respondent and to any of its.
principals, stockholders, officers, directors, employeés, agents, licensees, contractors,
distributors, controlled (whether by stock ownership or otherwise) and majority owned business
entities, successors, and assigns, and to each of them, insofar as they are engaging in 'conduct ‘

prohibited by Section I, infra, for, with, or otherwise on behalf of Respondent.



1.
Conduct Prohibited

The following conduct of Respondent in the United States is prohibited by the Order. For
the remaining term of U.S. Patent No. 6,584,527, Respondent shall not:

(A) import or sell for importation into the United States covered product except under
license of the patent owner;

(B) market, distribute, offer for sale, sell, consign, or otherwise transfer (except for
exportation) in the United States imported covered product except under license of the patent
owner;

AN

(C) solicit U.S. agents or distributors for covered product except under license of the
patent owner; or

(D) aid or abet other entities in the importation, sale for importation, sale after

importation, transfer, or distribution of covered product in the United States except under license
of the patent owner.
IV.
Conduct Permitted
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, specific conduct otherwise prohibited
by the terms of this Order shall be permitted if, in a written instrument, the owner ‘of U.S. Patent
No. 6,584,527 licenses or authorizes such specific conduct, or such specific conduct is related to

the importation or sale of covered product by or for the United States.



V.
Reporting

For purposes of thls reporting requirement, the yearly reporting periods shall commence
on July 1 of each year and shall end on the subsequent June 30. However, the first yearly report
required under this section shall cover the period from the date of issuance of this Order through
June 30, 2006. |

Within thirty (3 0) days of the last day of the reporting period, Respondent shall report to
the Commission the quanﬁty in units and the value in dollars of covered product that Respondent
has imported or sold in the United States after importation during the reporting period and the
quantity in units and value in dollars of reported covered product that remain in inveﬂtory in the
United States at the end of the reporting period. This reporting requirement shall continue in
force until such time as Respondent will have truthfully reported, in two consecutive timely filed
yearly reports, that it has no inventory of covered product in the United States.

Any failure to make the required report or the filing of any false or inaccurate report shall
constitute a violation of this Order, and the submission of a false or inaccurate report may be
referred to the U.S. Department of Justice as a possible criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

VL
vRecord-keeping and Inspection

(A) For the purpose of securing compliance with this Order, Respondent shall retain any
and all records relating to the exportation to and importation into the United States and the sale,

offer for sale, marketing, or distribution in the United States of covered product, made and



received in the usual and ordinary course of business, whether in detail or in summary form, for a
period of two (2) years from the close of the fiscal vear to which they pertain.

(B) For the purposes of determining or securing compliance with this Order and for no
other purpose, and subject to any privilege recognized by the federal courts of the United States,
duly authorized representatives of the Commission, upon reasonable written notice by the
Commission or its staff, shall be permitted access and the right to inspect and copy in
Respondent's principal offices during office hours, and in the presence of counsel or other
representatives if Respondent so chooses, all books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence,
memoranda, and other records and documents, both in detail and in summary foﬁn as are
required to be retained by subparagraph VI(A) of this Order.

VII
Service of Cease and Desist Order

Respondent is ordered and directed to:

(A) Serve, within fifteen (15) days after the effective date of this Order, a copy of this
Order upon éach of its respective officers, directors, managing agents, agents, and employees
who have any responsibility for the importation, marketing, distribution, or sale of imported
covered product in the United States;

(B) Serve, within fifteen (15) days after the succession of any persons referred to in
subparagraph VII (A) of thxs Order, a copy of the Order upon each successor; and

(C) Maintain such records as will show the name, title, and address ’of‘ each person upon
whom the Order has been served, as described in subparagraphs VII(A) and VII(B) of this Order,

. together with the date on which service was made.



The obligations set forth in subparagraphs VII(B) and VII(C) shall remain in effect until

Jwne 22, 2014, the date of expiration of U.S. Patent No. 6.584,527.
VIIL
Confidentiality

Any request for confidential treatment of information obtained by the Commission
pursuant to Sections V and VI of the Order should be in accordance with section 201.6 of the
Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure. 19 C.F.R. § 201.6. For all reports for which
confidential treatment is sought, Respondent must provide a public version of such report with
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